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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Paras Healthcare {Ranchi) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited
(‘the Company’}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Cther Comprehensive [ncome), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information,

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according {o the explanations given to us the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) in
the manner 5o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2022, and i{s loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAl') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially missiated.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchl) Private Limited, on the Audit
of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 {Cont'd)

The Director Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Manaaement for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibilily also includes
maintenance of adeqguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and delecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operaling effeclively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143({10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstalement of the financial statements, whether due fo
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and cbtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited, on the Audit
of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

s« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is net a public company as defined under section 2(71)
of the Act. Aceordingly, reporting under section 197{16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we repor, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have bean kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The financial statements deait with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e} Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). in our opinion and fo the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited, on the Audit
of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Cont’d)

The Company, as detailed in note 31 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2022.;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022.,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022.;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 42 (c) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ullimate

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 42 (d) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (the Funding Parties'’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whather
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures periormed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material

iv. &
Beneficiaries;
b.
c.
misstatement.
V.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2022.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

1y
Tarun Gupta Iy .
Partner imod
Membership No.: 507982 \@,_
S e
UDIN: 22507892AXNNWS7313 50 70

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 September 2022
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowtedge and
belief, we report that:

(i} (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assels,

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its properly, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasanable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i){c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order') is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Praperty, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets
or intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(iiy (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records,

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of fifty million rupees by
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not appiicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In cur opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are nc ameounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Chastered Accountanls



Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Paras Healthcare {(Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (cont'd)

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products and services. Accordingly,
reporting under elause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

{vii) {a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases.
Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outsianding at the year-end for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (2) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(vii}  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1981 (43
of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings ar in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a williul defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government ar any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given o us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though idle funds
which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in readily realizable liquid
investments.

(d) In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds con short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(%) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi} (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditers in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit,
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred fo in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi} Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (cont'd)

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complzints received by the
Company during the year.

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, all fransactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS} 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given {o us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Act Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi){a),(b) and (c) of the Crder are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Invesiment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 136.55 million and Rs 72.63 million respectively.

(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans
of the Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions , nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its lizbilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of ane year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us the Company does not meet the criteria
as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
membkbers of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 {cont’d)

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/NS00013

g

Tarun Gupta \;2'-?_‘
Partner NN
Membership No.: 507892 R

UDIN : 22507892AXNNWST7313

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 September 2022
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Paras
Healthcare {Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited
('the Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its asseils, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
infarmation, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Ourrespensibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl") prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
o erfor.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements .
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Paras
Healthcare (Ranchi} Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022 {cont'd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference te financial statemenis is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future pericds
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deleriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India .

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Tarun Gupta \f‘\ ;-
Partner OO -
Membership No.: 507982 ™« w0

-

. e

UDIN; 22507892AXNNWS7313

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 September 2022
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I'aras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Balanee sheet as at 31 March 2022
CIN: USS1101IR2017PTC072032

(All amounts are in INR Million, unless othenwise stated)

Particulars
ASSLTS
Non-cerrent assets
Praperty, plam and equipment
Right of usc assels
Capital wark-in progress
Intangible assets
Financial assets

Others
Other non-current assets
Total nan-current assets

Current asscts
[nventories
Financial assels
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Others
QOther cugrent assets
Taotal current asseis

Total nsseis

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Olher equaty

Total equlty

Linbilitles
Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Total non- current lablllties
Current linbilitics
Financial habilitics
Lease liabilities
Trade payables

- Tetal ontstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total omstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enigrprises
Others
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total enrrent labilitics

Total equity and liabilities
Summary of significant accounting palicies

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial stalerents.

As perour report of even date atiached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firtn Registration No: 001076N/MN500013

Tarun Gupta

Partner
Membership No. 502892

Place: Gurugram

Dae: 20 SethM 2022

Notes

L I BV

-]

B ]
12

13

14
15

i6

8

17
20
18

Asat

31 Maren 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

201 49 140.04
489.99 50189
2759) 30.56
0.10 028
1.09 .
77.10 51.29
1,045.68 724,06
333 235
1.15 1.52
5.48 226
30.43 .
0.27 4.80
| 0.27
42.37 11.20
1.088.05 73526
0.10 0.10
(546.67) (142.25)
(516.57) (342.15)
824.20 36238
679 66 64198
1.21 0.82
1,505.07 1,005.18
3165 36.89
0.02 0.5
6203 1046
3068 0.65
464 366
0.53 0.32
129.55 72.23
1,088.05 73526

For and on behelf of Board of Direciers of
Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limiled

Dr. Shankar Narang
Director
DIN : 08059067

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 September 2022

WV:JP

Kikhil Sharma
Dircctor
DIN : 05689292

Place: Gurugmam
Date: 23 September 2022



Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
CIN: USS110HR2017PTCR72032

{All amouats are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

lomne

Resenue om operations

Other incomg

Total income

Expenses

Purchases of medical drugs

Changes in inventeries of medical drugs
Employee benefits expense

Other expenscs

Total cxpenscs
Earning before interest, depreciation and amortisation and taxes (EBITDA)

Fmance costs
Depreciation and amortization expensc

Loss before tax

Tax expense

Current year

Deferred tax charge! (credit)
Laoss after tax (A)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefil liability

Income 1ax relating to items that will not be reclassified 10 profit or loss

Oilicr comprehensive income for the year, net of tnx (B)

Toinl comprehensive loss for the yetr (A+D)

Earnings per equity share

Basic and dituted eamings per equity share (Face vatue of INR 10 per share)
- Basic and diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Far Walker Chandiok & Co LLI*
Chartered Accountanls
Firm Repgistration No- 001076N/NS00013

T

Tarun Gupa
Pariner
Membership No. 507892

Place: Gurugram

Date: 30 34*‘24\?}59)1_ 202

Notes For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

kel ol 1306
2 1 45 -
40,06 13.06
23 1072 1.7
24 (0.93) 10.29)
25 2169 14.72
2% 57.52 31.72
§9.00 47.86
(38.949) (34.80)
27 120.05 87.55
28 3520 34.79
(204.20) (157.14)
(204.20) (157.14)
(0.22) 0.04
(0.22) 0.04
(204,42 [157.10)

30
(20.419.51) (15.714.39)

3

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Paras Healtheare (Ranclhi) Private Limited

Dr. Shankar Narnng ; j

Director
DIN : 08055067

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 September 2022

==

Nikhil Sharma
Dhrector
DIN - 09689292

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 September 2022



Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
CEN: USSITOIIR2017PTC072032

{All zmounts are [n INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulins

Ty the vear ended

31 Alareh 2022

T the yeitn endeld

3 March 2121

A

Cash Mow from opierating activitics
Loss belore tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finnnce costs

Inlerest income

Adjusiments for changes in working capital:
-in inventaries
-in trade receivables
«in loans & assels
«in frade payables
«In provisions and other liabilities
Cash used in operations
Income tax paid
Net cash uscd in operating nctivitics (A)

. Cash flows fratm investing activitics
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts

Investment in bank deposits
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities ()

Casl flows from financing activities
Proceeds of nen curtent borrowings
Repayment of tease liabilities

Interest paid

Net eash from financing setivities ()

Netincrease / (decreasc) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash on hand
Balance with banks:
= On current accounts

. Cash and cash equivalents at (ke end of the year

Cash on hand
Balance with banks:
- On current accouiits

Net Increase/{decrease) in eash and cash equivalents (E-1)

(204200 (157.14)
B2 3479
12005 8755
{1.45) -
(50.39) (34.80)
(0.98) a51
(2 84) {1.21)
568 14.76)
3134 16.44
136 401
(15.83) (19.31)
0.59) .
{16.42 {19.81)
(328.55) (84 18)
{3043) -
1.20 -
(357.78) {84.18)
419.49 118.13
(36.90) {15.45)
{5.17) .
17742 102.68
3.22 (Iﬁ
i3] ] 0462
205 295
2.26 3.57
004 0o
544 205
5.48 2.26
3.22 (I..}__l_]'




I'aras Mealtheare (Ranchiy Private Limied

Cash Flow Statement for the year caded 31 March 2022
CIN: USS110HIR2017PTCO72032

(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otheswise stated)

Nl

I The vash tow statement has been prepared undes the indiredt method set oul i Indian Accuunting Standard ¥ on Statement of cash flews as nottigd wider sectiun 133 ol

the Companies Act, 2013
2 Changee in babilities arising from financing activities;

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
3 March 2021

Opening batance
Borrowings
Lease liabilties

Cash fMlows
Proceeds from barrowings
Payment of lease Jiabilitics
Finance cost paid

Non-cask adjustments
Interest expenses towards lease liabilities
Finance cost debited to statement of profit and Joss

Closing balance
Borrowings
Lease habilities

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per aur repart of even date attached
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accouniants

Firm Registration No: Q01076N/NS00013

sl

Tarun Gupta
Pattner
Membership No 507592

Place: Gurugram

Date: 30 Sepfemben 2022

36236
67887

41949
(36 90)
(5.179)

69.32
50.72

82741
7115

For and on behall of Board of Diregtors of
Paras licaltheare (Ranchi) Peivate Limited

De. Shankar Narang

DIN - 08059067 DIN : 09589292

Place Gurugram
Date: 23 Sepiember 2022

Place: Gurugram

221.85
622.15

118.13
(15.45)
0400

6517
1238

362 36
678.37

@pvf\{(.m yh:-.gkhil Sharos
Director Tector

Date: 23 September 2022




Paras Healthcare {Ranchl) 'rivate Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 Xarch 2622
CIN: US5110IIR20t7PTC072032

{All amounts are ta INR millions, unless othernwise stated)

A, Equliy share caplial

A5t 31 March 2022 — Avatdl Mamhdel

Particnlas~

Sidathr wlbshon . Yool S -iumlur ul slires Litkannt
Althe llq:in;lingu_flllc year - Co T e .__“ml(l_.(;(.lu I ) T '_]'G‘b'uu' T 010
Clianges durinp thie year . - - -
Al e end of the vear . 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
B. Ouhier cquity
Attributable to the equity shiaceholders
Reserves and surplus
Trarticutars ; Total
Retained carnings Other comprehiensive o
Ineome
Dalance as at 31 March 2020 (135.15) - {185.15)
Lass far the year {157.14) - {157.14)
Other comprehensive invome for the year - 0.04 0.04
Ralance as at 31 March 2021 (342.29) 0.04 {342.25)
Loss for Uie year {20420} . {204.20)
Other comprehensive ingome for the vear - 10.22) 10.22)
Dalance as at 31 March 2022 {546.49) {0.18) {546.67)
Summary of significant accounling policies 3
The accompanying noles are an entegeal part of 1hese Anancial statonents.
As per aur repor! af even date attaclied
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Far and en behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Paras Healtheare (Ranchl) Private Limlted

Finn Repgistration No: 001076N/NS00013

Tarun Gupta Dr. Shankar Nara. Nikhil Sharma
Partner Direcior Director
Membership No 507892 DIN : 03050067 DIN - 09689292
Place: Gurmymam Place. Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date 3p m 20L% Date 23 Scprember 2022 Date 23 September 2022




P'aras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
CIN: USSHOTNIR2M 7PTCN72032

U8l atnounts are in PSNI anltions, unless eihes wise stated)

4. I'rapierty, plant and cquipment and Intangible nsscts

Property, plant & equipment

Leaschold Plant and Medical Office Computers and Furniture and

Particulars . Taotal

Improvements  equipments  equipments equipmenis SEIVErs Fittings
Gross earrying value
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2020 130.30 in 2951 1.24 4.15 313 172.05
Additions during 1he year 0.07 - .84 0.09 - - 1.00
Balance at 31 March 2021 130,37 372 30.35 1.33 4,15 3,13 173.05
Additions during the year - - 2338 - 1.0} 0.17 84 58
Balance as at 31 March 2022 130.37 3.72 113.73 1.33 5.18 3.30 257.63
Accumulated deprecintion -
Balance as ar 31 Marcl 2020 519 0.35 18 012 1.20 0.37 10.60
Additions during the year 13.04 0.69 5.56 0.53 1.86 .72 22 41
Balance at 31 Alarch 2021 18.83 104 8.34 0.65 3.06 1.0% kKR
Additions during the year 13.04 0.55 7.99 0.31 0.71 0.53 23.13
Balance at 31 March 2022 31.87 1.59 16.33 0.96 3.77 1.42 56,13
Nel Carrying Value
Asat 31 Mareh 2022 9§.50 2,13 2740 0.37 141 1.68 201.49
As gt 31 March 2021 111.54 2.68 22.01 0.68 149 2.04 140,04

Notes:

a) Refer note 16 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company for securing financing facilities from banks

b) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year.

¢} Refer nove 31 for information en capital cammitments.

{This space has been intensianally loft blank)




Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
CIN: UBS110HR2017PTCO72032

(All aounts are in INRR millions, unless otherwise stated)

A

Right-nl-use assets and lease liabilities

Ddvimataen st Tooses o e udo b Uiy v loasoe i pocseiied blow

I"articulars Land and buitding Right - of - usc

asscls
Balance as at 01 April 2020 513.79 513.79
Degrreciation charge for the year {11.90) (11.90)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 501.89 501.39
Diepreciation charge for the year (11.90) (11.50)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 489,99 480.99

The following is (he movetnent in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 3| March 2022.

Particulars Lease liabilites
Balance as at 01 Aprii 2020 629,15
Interest expenses 65.17
Payment of lease liability (15.45)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 678.87
Interest expenses 69.34
Payment of lease liability (36.90)
Balance as 2t 31 Mareh 2022 711.31
Current

As at 31 March 2022 3165
As at 31 March 2021 36.89
Non - current

Asat 31 March 2022 679.66
As at 31 March 2021 641.98

As at 31 March 2022 . the Company is not exposed to future cashflows relating to extension / termination opticns, residual value puaranices and leases not

commenced to which [essee s commitied.

The following are amounts recognised in Statement of Profit ond Loss:

For thce year ended
31 Marel 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Bepreciation expense of right-of-use asscts 11.90 11.90
Interest expense on lease liabilities 69.34 65.17
Rent expenses (towards short term [ease and varinble lease payments which are ntot linked to any index ete. as per Ind 8.51 3.73
AS-116)

Total 89.75 80.80

. The total amount of cashflow on account of [eases for the year has been disclosed in the cash (low statement.

. The table below describes the nature of Company's leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised on the balarce sheet:

31 March 2022

Right of use asscts Range ol remaining

Average remaining

term lease term (in years)
{in years)
Haospitals 41.19 41.19

31 March 2021

Right of use asscis Range of remaining

Average remaining

terim Iease term (in years)
fin vears)
Hospitals 42.19 42.19

The Company determines the leases term as either the non-cancellable period of the [ease and any additional periods when there is an enforeeable option to exiend
the lease and it is reasonably certain that the Company will extend the term, or a lease period in which it is reasonably certain that the Comparny will not exercise a

right to terminate. The lease term is reassessed if there is a significant change in circumstances.

. The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturitics of lease linbilities as ot 31 March 2022 and as at 31 March 2021 on an urdiscounted basis:

Maturity analysis — contractunl undiscounted cash Nows Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Less than one year 43.60 3690
Aflcr one year but net longer than five years 193.70 184.54
More than five years 5,138.89 5,191.65
Total __5376.1% 5413.09




Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

Notcs fo the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
CIN: USSTIOHR2017PTCO72032

(Al nmounts are in INR millions, unless otlicrwise siated)

I©. Sommary of significant leases:

Pnstiunt Lo e progusal s Heiny §ngmeatiie Cospodation T ad (horomatter eiviied e as "HEC7 00 pubhie secion undertahaget. the Commpain . thioagdea bad by ats
holding company (Paras Hezltheare Private Limited), was awarded with the contract to build and operate a multi-specialty hospital in Ranchi. As per the terms of
the concession agreement, dated 16 January 2018, HEC hand over the existing hospital with 50 beds to the Company along with the land adjacent to it to build a

multi-specialty hospital of 300 beds.
Therefore, the Lease Deed has been executed by and between FIEC and PHRPL dated 14 August 2019 to occupy the said Premises for o term of 33 years

extenclable to 10 years (ten years) on same terms & conditions and the Paras Healtheare {Ranchi) Private Limited (PHRPL) shall run and operate a multi-specialty
Hospital in the brand name of Paras HEC Hospital.

6. Capital work-in-progress *

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 blarch 2021
Capital work-in-progress 27591 30.56
Total 275.91 30.56

*Capital work-in-progress includes [NR 39.57 million (31 March 2021: INR 15.23 million) towards pre-operative expenses (employee benefiis and travelling
expenses ete.) pending allocation.

{a) Copital work-in-progress ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of .
Particuls Total
Artieiars Less than Lyear -2 Years  2-3 ¥ears  More than 3 Years o
3t-March-2022 245.35 2263 7.93 - 27591
31-March-2021 30.56 - - - 30.56

{b) There are no such project under capita)-work-in progress, whosc campletion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared 1o its original plan as of 31 March 2022
and 31 Magch 2021.

7. Intangible asscts

Particulars Asat Asat
31 dMarceh 2022 31 March 2021
Software
A. Gross carrying amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.08 1.08
Balance as at end of the year 1.08 1.08
B. Accumulated amortisation
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.30 0.32
Additions during the year 0.18 0.48
Balance as at end ol the year 0.98 0.80
0.10 0.28

Net carrying value

{This space has been inrenrionally lefi blank)




I*aras Healtheare {Ranchi} Mrivate Limited

Notes to the Finaneial Statements for the year ended 3t Margh 2022

CIN: USSTIOHRI01PTCO72032
{All amounts arc In INR millions, unless oiherwise stated)

8.

11,

Other Ginancial assels

S it

v oat
31 March 2022

‘s at
31 March 2021

LATYFRR

S oat
31 March 2022

isat
31 March 2021

Unsecared, considered gaod

3! March 2022

31 March 2021

31 March 2022

{Coniract assels - - 002 173
Securily deposits 040 - . ao¥
Advance tax (net) 069 - . -
Accrued interest on fixed deposits - - 0.25 -
Tata) 1.09 - 0.27 4.850
Other asscls

Non current Current

Asat Asat Asat Asat

31 March 2021

Unsecured, considered pood

31 March 2022

Capita! advances F110 138 16 - -
Prepaid expenses . 283 652 0.22
Advance to employees . 00 0.05
Advanees to suppliers - - 1] -
Tatal 710 51.2%9 1.71 .27
., Inventories
Asat Asat

31 March 2021

Valued at lower of cost and net reatisalile value

~Medical donys 253 160
- Stores and consimnables 080 Q75
Total 333 235
Trade receivables
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Considered good. unsequred | L5 1.5
Toral 1.15 1.52
Trade reccivables apcing scliedele as at 31 March 2022
Quistanding for following periods from date of insoice
Particulars Lessthan$ S monthsto ] R Morc than 3
manths vears 1.2 years 2.3 years vears Total
Undisputed trade receivables
- Unsecured, considered pood 052 055 0.07 - . 115
Total irade receivahles _0.52 0,55 0.07 - - L.15
Trade recelvables agcing schedule as at 31 March 2021
Duistanding for following perlods from date of invetce
Particulars Lessthan6 6 monthsin | More than 3
i 1-2 yoars 2-3 years Tatal
tnonths years years
Undisputed trade receivables T
- Unsecured, considered pood 152 - - . - .52
Tatal trade receivables 1.52 - - 152

1. There are no debis due by directors or other officers of the Company o any of them gither severally or jointly with any other person or delits due by fitms o private companics respectively in

which any director is a pantner or a director or a member

2 There are no disputed or unbilled irade recevables. hence the same is nat disclosed in the apeing of the schedule

. Cash and cash equivalents

3 Mareh 2022

Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cash in hand 003 02

Balances with banks
- i1l CuITEDE 3CCOUALS 544 2.05
Tatal 548 2.26
. Dank balances odher than cash and eash equivalents

As ot Asat

31 March 2021

Other bank balances

+ Deposits with anginal matursty more than direg months bt rentaining matusity of less than twelve menths=

Total

#includes deposil of INR 0.05 ntilhon a3 Lien agamst overdrafl facility,

3043

3012




Paras Itealthcare (Ranchi) Private Limiied

Motes to the financial statements fer the year ended 31 March 2022
CIN: US5110HR2017PPTCOT72032

{All amounts are in INR Mlllion, unless atherwise stated)

14

15.

Enquity shace eapita)

ot
Farinulin-

Authorized share caplial

31 Mardh 2022

v

_ ALk 20l

0,000 {30 Mazch 2021 - 10,000 equity shares of INR |0/ cachs 0.t0 oo
Issucd, subscribed and Folly paid-up shares
10,000 431 March 2021 - 10,000) equity shares of INR 10~ each, fully paid up 0.10 010
Total issued, subscribed snd fully pald-up share caplial 010 0.10
a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the cod of reporting period:
Equlty shiares of INR 104 each Issued, subseribed and Tully paid As at 31 March 2022 Asat 31 Mareh 2021

No. af shares Amount No. ol shares Amount
At the beginning and end of the year 10,000 95!0 10,000 g___m_

b) Terms, rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Cotnpany has only ane class of equity shares huving s par vahue of INR 10/ per share. Ench Giolder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share wilh a right to receive per
share dividend dectared by the Company. In Lhe event of liguidation, the equity sharcholders are entitfed 10 receive remuining assets of the Company in the propartion of equity

shargs held by the shareholders

¢} Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the agarepade shares in the Company

- As ot 31 Marely 2022 As at 31 March 2021
. N 2 . . 1-u L=k
Exuity shares of INRIO/- each fully paid held by NumbDer of shares %o of holling  Number af shares % af holding
Paras Healtheare Privale Limited {(including nominee sharcholder) 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Nate:
The above information is futnished as per shareholder register of the Company as at the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
d) Detalls of shares keld by promoters of the Compzny:
NRL0S ~
Equlty shares of INRLO/- each fully pald heli by Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holdinpg
Paras Healthcare Prvate Limited {including nemince sharcholder} 10,000 100 10,000 1.00

Notes:

a) The above information is furnished as per sharcholder regisier of the Cempany as at the vear ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
b} No changes in promoter’s sharcholdings during the respective years.

) "Promotcrs’ for the puspose af this disclesure means promoters as defined under Section 2(69) of Companies Act, 2013,

¢) Aggregate number of shares Issued for consideration other than eash during the peeiod af fve years Immediately preceding the reporiing date
The Company has not issued any shares pursuant 10 a contract without paymnent being received in cash, alloied as fully paid up by way of bonus shares nor has there

been any buy-back of shiares in the current year and immediately preceeding five years.

Other equity*

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Retained camings (note 2) (546.49) (34229
Other comprehensive income (note b) {0.18) 0.04
(516.67) {342.25)

*Refer Statement of Changes in Equity

Nature anil purpase af reserves
n) Retalned earnings

Retained camings are accumated profits camed by the Company 1ill date, as adjusted for distribution to owners.
1) Other comprehensive income
Chlier comprehensive income pertains to reneasurement paing’ {losses) on defined bengkit plans




Paras Healtheare (itanchi) Private Limiled

Notes (o the Financial Statements for (he year ended 31 March 2022
CIN: USS110HR2017PTCO72032

{All amounts are in INR millions, unless othernwise stated)

16. Borrowings

ot 3 March Jutl Aot 30 slngh 2z

Non current

Secured

Tettn loans from banks 180.00 -
Unsecured

Teotn loans from others 644 20 362.38
Total non-eurrent borrowings 82.4.20 362.38

# The Company has obtained borrowing from the holding company at 9.65% p.a. and the same will be repayable in five equal annual installments after initizi moratorivm
peried of six years starting from 2019-20 {year of commercial aperation).

Rote of intcrest a1 9.65% p.a (31 March 2021 © 9.65% p.a}

Note: The Company has not defaulted in repayment of interest and the principal is not due for payment in the current year.

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

a) Rupee Term Loan from Banks

1Y INR 180.00 millions (31 March 2021 : Nil) are secured primartly by: Repayable in 28 installments agpregating to INR 180.00 mllions,
A Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over all sovable assets of the

bamrower Rate of interest a1 5 75% p.a.(31 March 2021 mil)

B. Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over all currem assets, present or
future, of the borrower

C. Exclusive charge aver the berrower's nghs, title or interest created under the
cancession egreement between the bormower and HEC( including exclusive
charge on leaschold rights and tand and building)

Utilisation of borrowings
‘The loan has been obtained for capital expenditure for sctting up 300 bed hospral at Ranchi and other facility refated expenses. However, the full has not been utilised yel.
The unutilised funds bave been invested in fixed deposits held with banks.

{This space has been intenvionally left blank)




Paras Healtheare (Ranchi} Private Limited

Nates to the Financial Statemcats for the year ended 31 Mazch 2022
CIN: US51T0[IR2017PTC072032

{All amounts are In EXR millions, unless otherwise stated)

17, Qiher Onancial labllitles

Asal Asat
L1 IRY NERS I 1 Mardh 2ot
It e parc e ol praperte, plant g e ar EIRIIN -
Emplayees payable 062 0G5
Total 30.68 0.65
Note:
Refer note for detmied disclosure on fair valuc of financiab lizbilities
The Company’s exposure 1o liquidity risks related to above financial liatilities are disclosed in note 38
18. Provisions
Non current Current
Asat Asal Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 Maech 2021 31 Maech 2022 31 Mavch 2021
Provision for gratuity (refer note 42) 0.50 03l L] 0404
Provision for compensaled absences .61 051 0.33 0.26
Tatal 1.21 0,82 0.53 032
19, Trade pavables
Asat As ot
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Tortal gursiznding due to micro and small enterprises 002 025
Toral cursizndiey due to oiber than micro and small enterprises 62 03 0 46
Tatal 6205 0,71
Notes:
a1 For trade pavables owing to refated parties. refer note 32
by For trade payables owing te muere and simall enterprises, refer note 40
Trade "ayable ageinge schedule as at 31 March 2022
Particelars Quistanding for fallowling periods from due date of pavment Tatal
L'nbilled Less than T vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears  More than d vears
Undisputed trade payables
MSME - 002 - - - 002
Others 812 29.91 =23l 0.16 153 62 03
Tatal trade pavables 8.12 29,93 2231 0.16 1.53 62,05
Trade Mayable ageing schedule as at 11 March 2021
Particalars Qutstandine Far followlng periods from due date of paviient Total
L nbilled Lessthan I sear -2 vears 2-3 sears  More than 3 vears
Undisppted frade payables
MSME 002 024 . - - 025
Oihers 3093 7.85 168 . - 3046
Tota) trade pavables 20.95 3.49 LE8 - - 30,73
There are ne disputed trade payables, henee the same 15 got diselosed i the agemg schedule
0. Other current Mabilities
— Asar Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Stamlory dues payable .64 3.60
Total J4.64 3.66

(TTies space hia been inrentsanally Ieft blanky




Paras Healtheare (Rancli) PPrivate Limited
Notes to the Financizl Statements for the year cnded 31 March 2022
CIN: USS110HR2017PTC072032

(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

2L,

22

23.

M

Revenue Mo operations

Tet the veun endal

JE March 2022

For the sean emled
31 March 2021

Revenue Mrom sale of services - Healtheare
Cperating income - in patiem departiment
Opcraling income - owl patient department

Revenue from sale of product - Pharmacy
Pharmacy

Less: Trade discounts

Othier operating revenues
Others

Tatal

Note: Refer note 39 for revenue related disclosures.

QOther income

3193 7.05
6.33 1.51
1.77 0.44

40.03 9.00

{1.42) (0.59)

38.61 8.41

- 4.63
- 4.65
38.61 13.06

For the year cnded
31 dlarch 2022

Far the year endcd
31 March 2021

Interest income under the effective interest method on:

- fixed deposits
Tatal

Purchases of medical drugs

1.45

1.45

For the year cndcd
31 Marel 2022

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2021

Purchases of medical drugs
Total

Changes in inventories of medical drugs

10.72

1.71

10.72

1.71

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Faor the year ended
31 March 2021

Inventories at the end of the year

Purchase of medical drugs 2.53 1.60
2.53 1.60

Inventories at the bepinning of the yenr
Purcliase of medical drugs [.60 1.31
1.60 1.31
Tatal (0.93) (0.29)

Employec benefits expense

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salartes and wages 19.49 13.64
Contributien o provident fund and other funds 128 0.86
Staff welfare cxpenses 092 0.22
Tatal 21.69 14.72

(This space has been intentionally left blonk}
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rher eapeases

Far the svar eaded
31 March 2022

Fuy the year endded
31 March 2021

Power, fuel and water 254 1.68
Rent and facility fees 851 373
Repair and maintenance
= Buildings 0.07 0.21
- Plant and equipment 1.63 1.64
- Others 1.75 0.83
House keeping 3359 1.95
Laundry expenses 0.16 0.05
Patient food and beverage 1.60 0.83
Pathology {aboratory and radiology 290 1.25
Consultation and professional charges to doctors 27.09 13.89
Qutsourced medical services 0.28 0.79
Continuing medical education and hospitality 0.07 .
Security expenscs 1.38 037
Legal and professional 0.57 0.31
Travelling and conveyance 1.48 1.47
Printing and stationery 048 0.45
Communication 0.45 035
Insurance 0.27 0.00
Marketing and business promotion 1.45 0.86
Auditors’ remuneration (including applicable taxes) - -
- Statutery audit 047 0.35
= Out of pocket expenses - 0.02
Bank charges 048 003
Miscellancous expenses 0.30 0.21
Total 57.52 31.72
Finabee costs

For the year enden For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Interest expense

- On loans taken from banks 517 -

- Others 45.54 22.38

[nterest on fease liabilities 69.34 65.17

Total 120.05 §7.55
Depreciation and amortization expenscs

For the year ended For the year ended

31 Marceh 2022 31 March 2021

Depreciation and amonlisatian expenses 23.31 2289

Amortisation of right-of-use assets 11.90 11.90

Totnl 35.21 34.79

{This space has been intentionally left blank)




I'aras Healtheare {Ranchi) Private Limited

Nalts ta the financial statements for the year eaded 31 March 2022
CIN: USSTIOHR2017PTCO072032

{All amounis are in INR millions, enless othensise stated)

19 Tax cxpense

ay Amauaf reengnlsedl In profie and nss

Far the vear eniled

Far the vear endled

. . N LY FY R R T A Mandh 2nz
Cunend L i)

Deferted tax eredit {b) (refet note below) . .

Tax expense far the year - .

b) Income recognised in other compreliensive Incame For the year ended Far the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Re-measurement of defined benelit liakiliy -

t) Reconciliation of cifective tax mte For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021
Loss befare tax {204.20) {157.14)
Tax using the Company's domestic rate 16 00% (5309 26.00% {40.86)
26.00% {33.09) 26.00% (4D.86)
Tax expense recopnlsed In the statement af profit and loss - -
dy Recagnized deferred tax assets and liabilitles
Deferred tax asscls and labilitles atiribuizblc to the following:
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 3 Mareh 2021
Deferred (ax assets f (liabHliies) :
« Brought forward business losses and unabsorbed depreciztion 76.87 43.01
- Property, plant and equipmem 010 kX )
- Provision for employee benefits 045 0130
« Lease liabilitics {nel of right of use asscts) 57.54 19.99
134,96 106,67
Delerred 12x charge Feredit {refer note betow) - -
Net deferred tax nsseis (refer note below) - -

Note:

The Company is in its initial phasc of operations and currenily operating an existing 50 bed hospital Fusthier, the Company is constructing 300 beds multi-specialty hospital on the
adjacent fand The deferred tax assets are recognised 10 the extent that it is probable future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unabsotbed
tax losses and deprecialion is an evidence that future taxable profits may not be avaitable. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses, the Company recognises 2 defeered tax asset only
to The extent that i1 has sufficient laxable temporary differences or there is convincing evidence that sufTicient taxable profits will be available against which such defemed tax nssets can
be realised. No deferred tax asset has been recognised by the Company as it is nol probable that the Company would have significant future taxable profils to utilize thess temporary
dilTerences.

fTis spave has been mtennonally feft blunk)
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30 Earnings per share {EI'5)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attnibutable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares oustanding duzing the year
Diluted EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit auribulable 1o equity holders by the weighted averape numbet of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighied

average number of equity shazes that would be issued on Conversion of all 1hie dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The fellowing reflzcts the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS commputations:

Particulzrs For the year ended For the year ended
31 Maorch 2022 31 March 2021
Weighted average number of shares outstanding doring 1he year 001 001
et profit afler tax available for equily shareholders (204200 (157.14)
Basic and diluted carning per share {in INR) [Face value of INR 10/~ cach) (20819 51} (15,714.39)

31 Cammitments amil Contingencics
a) Cantingenl liabilitics not provided for:

The Company had received notice(s) amounting 1o INR 27 50 million from Heavy Engineering Corporation Lizited (HEC™ as liquidated damages m carlier vears on acceunt of the
delay in opesing of 50 bedded hospital, in accerdance with the 1erms and conditions of the Agreement dated 16 January 2018. The Company has replied to such notices from HEC and
anticipate a favorable outcome in future. Basis the management's asscssment and supperied by the external lega) opinion, the Company has not made any provision for the said amount,
in anticipation of the impact not being significant on financial perforniance of the Company.

b) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracls remaining to be executed which is of capilal nature ¢net of advances) and which have not been provided for in the Enancial statemenls, ameunts to INR
[44.41 millions (31 March 2021: Nil)

(Tins space Bas been utentionally left blank)
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Related party disclosures

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into transactions with its key management personncl, The names of related partics of the
Company as required to be disclosed under Indian Accounting Standard 24 *Related Party Disclosures” is as follows:

Nature of relationship Name of related party

@) List of related partics and nature of relationship where control exits

Holding Company Paras Healtheare Private Limited

b) List of related parties and naturc of relationslip witl wlom transactions have taken place during the current/ previous year

(ty Key management personne! of the Company D:. Shankar Narang (Directon
Ds. Talat Halim {Directorn)
Mr. Mridul Saxena {Mon Executive Director)
Mr. Vaibhav Ashok Doshi (Non Executive Dinectar)
Mr. Nikhik Shatma (Additional Director)

c). Transactions/ balances with related parties:

Forthe yearended  For the year ended

1 1

Particulars Namie of related party 31March2022 31 March 2021
Loan from Holding company Paras Healtheare Private Eimited 281.82 140.53
Interest expenses on Loan taken fram Holding Company Paras Healtheare Private Limited 42.33 2238

Balance outstanding as at the end of the year:

, . Asat Asat
Particulars Nameof related party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Laan from Holding company Paras Healthcare Private Limited 644.20 36238

Note: (a)The Holding Company (i.c. Paras Healtheare Private Limited) has given bank guarantee of INR 73.00 million as per the terms and
conditions mentioned in the concessian agrecinent entered with Heavy Enginccring Corporation Limited (HECL).

(b)Subsequent 1o year end, the Holding Cotnpany has issued letier of support for financinl assistance 1o the Company for ongoing projects and
eperations for a period of not less than 12 months fram the date of financial closure of accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Segment information

An operating scement is a companent of the Company that engages in business aclivities from which (a) it may cam revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, (b) fer which discrete financial
information is available (¢) operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s managing director i.e. Chief operating decision maker
{CODM) 1o make decistons about resources o be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. The Company is engaged in the business
of providing health care services. Thus, the Company has only anc operating scgment, and has no reportable segments in accardance with Ind AS -
108 'Opcrating Scaments’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure 10 be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in
the financial statements.

The Company has incurred a losses of (fotal comprehensive loss) INR 204.42 million in current year (previous year: INR 157,10 million} and has
accumulated losses of INR $546.67 million s at 31 March 2022 {previous yeac: INR 342.235 million) which is has significantly croded the nct worth
of the Company. Based on financial projections and cxpansion plans, the Company expecls growth in ils operations and improved operating
performance in coming years and also, expects to eam enhanced cash inflows from iis operating activitics. The Company believes such anticipated
internally gencrated funds from operations in future and its available sanctioned facilities and certain other current asscls (Anancial and non-
financiab) as oo date, will enable it 1o meet its future known obligations duc in next year, in the ordinary course of business.

Funher, the holding company has confirmed its intent as well as ability to extend continued financial suppert to the Company. as and when needed,
so as to enable the Company continucs its aperations as a going concern in foresceable future and board of directors of the Company have
ecknowledged the continued support,

In view of the same, the management of the Company is hopefis] of generating sufficicnt cash flows in the futare to meet the Company’s financial
obligations. Thercfore, these financial statements have been prepared on 4 going cencem basis.

23
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Emplayee beaelits

The Company contribules 1o 1ke fallowing past-emplayinem defined bencfit plans in Indiz

Dezfined contribution plans

The Company has recognised the following in the Statemem of profit and lass:
Asal Asat
Particulars 31 Marek 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Employer's contribution to Employee's Provident Fund 105 074
Employer's contribution 1o Employze’s State [nsurance 023 0.12
Total 1.18 0,84
Otlser loeng-ters esnployement benefits
The Company provides compensated absences benefits to the employess af the Company which can be carried forward 1o future years.
Partlculars Asal Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present valuc of obligation as at the end of the year
Compensated absences an o7
Current and eon-current lability breakup
Mot curment 0.61 051
Cusrent 03 026
0.94 0.77
Defined Lenefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per e Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Emplayees who arc in continuous service for a period of § years are cligible
for ratuity. The amount af granity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month compuled proporiicnately fos Giltees days satary

multiplied for the number of years of service

The lollowing 1able set aut the status of the defined benelit obYigation

Befined benefit obligation
Sueplus

Current and non-current Iiability breakup
Non euwrrent
Current

For detalls about the celated employee benefit expenses, refer note 25.
The following table shows 2 reconcilialion from the opening batances to the clasing balances for the ner defined benefit fasset) tiability and its coInponcmts

(i) Reconeiliation of present value of defined benefit abllgation

Balance i the beginming of the year

Currenl scrvice cost

Interest cost

Actuanal (gansy losses recogmised an gther compreh meame
Benefits pad

Balance at the end of the year

(i) Expense vecognized in statement of profit or loss

Currenl service cost
Ketinterest an net defined benefit habality / (exser)

{li)) Remeasurentents recagnlrect In ofhier comprehensive Incame

ot 1 Aol .t
A g an d benefit oblig:

(iv} Experience History

Defined benefit obligation a1 the end of the peziad
Expericnee gaini{loss) adjustments on plan liabilities

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0.80 037
0.50 0.37
0.60 0.3!
0.20 0.06
0.80 0.7
Asat Asat
11 March 2022 3 March 2021
037 028
a1 010
0.02 001
022 0.04
- (0.07)
0,80 037
For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
a19 0.01
042 0.10
0.21 0.11
For the year ended For the year endled
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0.22 0.03
0.22 0.04
Asatl Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0.E0 037
0.22 0.03
1.01 040
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{¥) Defined benelit obligation - Actuarial assumplions Asal Asat
Principal actuaria) assumptions al the reporting dale {exp 1 25 weighied averages) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Finzneizl assumplions

Discount rate 5.25% 500%
Salary escalation rmie 5.00% 500%
Demographic assumptions

Mostalily rate 1ALM 2012-14 1ALM 20]2-14
Retirement apge 58 years 58 years
Withdrawal rae 315.00% 1500%

As a1 31 March 2022, the weighted average duration of the defined bencfit obligation was 18 years (31 March 2021 : 19 years).

{vi) Sensltivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes m the reporting daic to ane of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding ather assumptions constant, woold lave affected the delined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below

As at 31 Marek 2022 As at 31 March 2022
Tterease Detrease Increasg Decrease
Discount rate {1%0) 078 D52 036 038
Snlary escalation rmie i %) 052 078 035 0.36
Wilhdrawal rate {132) 079 0.8l 037 038

The sensitivity results bove determine their individual impact oz the Plan’s end of year Defined Benefit Obligaties. U reality, the Plar is subject to muliiple external experience
items which may move the Defined Benefit Obligation in simitar or opposite direclions, while the Plan's sensitivity to such changes can vary over time.

When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the delined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of 1lie reponing pericd) has been applied as when cateulating the defined benefit liability recopnised in the balance sheet.

The metheds and types of assumplions used in prepaning the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

{vii) Maturity profile
The teble below shows the expected eash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the curment membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the vatiation
date.
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 202)
Year | 020 0.06
Year2 0.06 0.03
Year 3 oos 003
Year 007 003
Year 5 006 0.03
Next § years 034 020

The Company expects to contribute [NR 0.47 million (31 March 2021 is INR 0 22 million) far post employment benefits dusing the next financial year.
{viti) Risk exposure

The Gratuity scheme is a finat safary Defined Benefit Plan thay provides for & lump sum payment made on exit eitlier by way of retirement, death, disability or voluntary
withdrawal. The benefils are defined on the basis of finy satary and the period of service and paid os lump sum at exit The Plan design means the risks comnonly affecting the
liabilities and the financial resulls are expected to be:

Interest mate risk : The defined benefit obligation caleulated uses a discount raie based on povernment bonds 1§ bond yields fall, the defined benefil oblipation will tend to
increase.

Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in safary will increase the defined benefit obligation

Demographic risk : This 3s the risk of variability of results due 10 unsystemalic nature of decrements that include moralily, withdrawal, disability and retizement. The efTect of
these decrements on the defined benefit abligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount raie and vesting cniteria. [t is impostam not
to overstate wilkdrawals because in the financia) analysis the retiremem benefit of a shost carcer employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employes

36. Capital management

Far the purpase of the Company’s capilal management. capital includes issued equity capilal, share premium and il other reserves attributable to the equity holder. The primary
ehbjective of the Company's capital management is 1o maximize the sharcholder value. Management menitors the return on capital.

The Company monitors its net debt / cquity ratio as well as compliance with Bnancial covenants on regulary basis.

The Company is in the initisl stage ef operations and in the process of constructing 300 bed hospital. The Company bas conunenced its operations in the previous year. The
Holding Company is providing financial suppott to the Company to comtinue as a going concent.

Particulars As 2l 31 March 2022 Az at 31 March 2021
Tolal liatilities 1,634.61 1077 41
Less cash and cash equivalent 548 21
Net debt 1,629,13 1,075,185
Total equity (546 55) (142 15y
Equity {5-16.55) {312.15)
Net debt to equlty ratla (2.08) {3.1.1)

The Company manages is capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic canditions, No changes were made in the objectivp’ policies o
manaping capitst dusing the years ended 31 Mareh 2032 and 31 March 2021 "
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Falr value measurement nnd financial instruments

D timeal instraments 4o calegor sy and Gooovabre ictanehiy
e tollowing table shuws the camying amounts and Lt vabue of haancral assets ad finaneiad latihites, cludimg ther lesels inthe dai vabue loenachy

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Carrying value Fzir value measurement using

FYTILY Anortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Leve) 3
Finnneinl asscts
Trade receivables - 1.15 115 . . -
Cash and cash equivalents . 548 548 - - -
Loans - a00 0.00 - - -
Others - 037 0,37 - - .
Total - 6.50 .90] - - -
Finnneial linbilities
Teade payables . 6205 62.05 - - -
Lease Hakilities - F11.31 71131 - - .
Borrowings - 82420 824.20 - . -
Other financial lizbilies - 30.63 30.68 . - -
Total - 1,628.24 1,628.24 . - .
Asat 31 March 2021
Particulars Carrying volue Fair value measurenmient using

FYTILH Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial asscts
Trade receivables - 152 1.52 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 228 226 - - -
Loans - 0.07 0.07 - - -
Qthers - 4.73 4.73 - - -
Total - 8.58 8.58 « - -
Financtal labilities
Trade payables . ann kLl | - - .
Lease liabilitics - §78.87 678.87 - - -
Borrowings - 16238 36338 - - -
Other financial liabilties - 0.65 0.65 - . .
Total - 1,072.61 1,072.61 - - .

The canying amounts of irade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, cument loans and other current financizl assets and financial liabiliies,
approximates the fair values, due to their short-term pature

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
# Fair value through profit or loss

Finaneial risk management

The Company has exposure ta the following risks arising from financial insteuments:
¢ Credit aisk

= Liguidity nisk ;

= Market risk

Risk manngertent framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The board of directors
have suthorized the Managing Director to establish the processes, who ensures that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of properly defined
framework

The Company’s risk managemen! policies are established 10 identily and analyze the risks faced by the Company. o set appropniale risks limits and controls, and o
monitor sisks and adherence to limits Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to refllect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
undersiand their roles and oblizations.

([) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the rross caurving amount of these finzncial assets in the balance sheet.

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables 1.15 152
Cash and Cash equivalents 548 226
Loans 04ao 407
Qither financial assets 027 4.73

Credit risk ts the risk of financia! toss to the Company if a customer or countzparty to a financial instrument fils to meet its conrectual obligations.

Credit risk arises mainly from loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances end financial asseis. Other financial assets comprise of unbilled
revenue and accrued interest on fixed deposits. The Company maimains a defined credit policy and monitors the exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The Company's exposure to credit nisk 1s influgnced mamty by the wdividun!
characierisiics of each customer. However, management alsa considers the factors that may influcnce the credit sisk of its customer base, including the default risk
associgled with the imdusiry and couniry in which customers operate.
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In mennoring cestomer credit risk, custometspatients arc grouped according 1o their credn chamctenistics, including, whether they are third party insurance agents or
rovernment panel pattents and nthers

L b aesens Bremene ke reco e e B aoo ndence i i s G annnn s et e podeoy el acred e B b cete® o appres o proce e
The Company provides lor expected credn losses on rady recenables based on s simplfied approach as per Ind A5 LU9. Under this approach, eapected credil lusses
are computed basis the probability of defaults over the lifetime of the asset This allowarnce is measuzed taking into account credit profile of the custome, tde
channcls, past experience of defaults, estmates for fulure unceitamiics etc

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade reccivables are as follows.

Particulnrs 0-180 days| 181-365 days More than 365 Total
31 March 2022 1.15 - . 1.15
31 March 2021 1.52 - - 1,52

Qther than financiak assets mentioned above, none of the Company's financial assels are either impaired or past due, and there were no indications that defauhs in
payment obligations would eccur.

{B) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will enceuntes difficulty in meeting the obligations assoctated with its financial babilitzes tha are settled by delvening cash
or another financial asset The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient [iquidity o meel its liabilities when
they are dus.

Manngement monitors relling forecasts of the Company's liquidily position and cash and cash equivalents an the basis of expected cash flows The Company takes
inta account the liquidity of the market in which the Company operates

Maturities of financial liabdlities

The following are the remaining contractual matuniies of financial liahilitics at the reponing daie. The amounts wre gross and undiscounted and include cstimated
interest poyments, where applicable
As ot 31 March 2022

Contractual cash flows

Less than Between one year Mare than Total
_ one year and five vears S years
Non current liabilities
Bomrowings 1035 726,14 15603 892 51
Lease liabilities 43 60 140.94 5.191.65 537619
Trade payables 6205 - - 6205
Other finangial ltabdiies 3068 - . 3068
Total 13633 §67.08 5,347.68 6,361.43
Asat 31 March 2021 Contractuzl eash Mlows
Less than Between ane year More than Tatal
one vear and five years 5years
Non corrent liabilitics
Borrowings . 362 38 - 35238
{ease habiliges 36 90 23730 513889 541309
Trade payables 307t - . wn
Other financeal habilites 067 - - 0467
Tonl 68.28 §99.68 5,138.89 5,806.85

(C) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and anterest rates — will affect the Company s income or the value of its heldings
of financiak instruments. The objective of market nisk management is ta manage and control market nsk exposuses within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
relum
a} Curreacy risk
Curtency risk is the risk thar the future cash flows of a financial instremem wifl fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates The Company has limited
exposure frem the intemational market as the Company™s operations are in [ndia and cams fess than 10% of its revenue from foreign currency from intermational
paticnts. Also, capital expenditure includes capital goods purchased in foreign currency through the overseas vendors.
The Company is not exposed to the eflects of fluciuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows as there is no foreign
CUITCNCY @XPOSUTe &5 On reparting date

Interest rafe risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valuee or futute cash flows of a financial instrument wil fluctuate because of changes in marke! interest rates. The Company's
interest rate risk arises from:-

- Borrowings which are made o1 market rate of interest at the time of borrowings.

- Bank deposits which are made at market rate of interest at the time of deposit.

This exposes the Company to cash flow inlerest rate tisk.

Exposure to Inferest Rate Risk 31-Mnrch-2022 31-March-2021]
Fixed rate instruments 824,20 36218

Totzl 824.20] 362.38|
Nensivigy

Below Es the seasitivily of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

Particulars 31-Mzarch-2022] J1-dMarch-2021

Interest sensilivity™

Intercat mles - increase by 100 basis poims (31 March 2020 100 basis points) iJe 2 362

[ reles - decrease by H00 basis points (31 March 2020: 100 basis points) 18.24) (3.62)

* Holding all othet variables constam
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ftevenune related disclosures

Disagprepatiog of revenws

Revenue recognised mainly comprises of healtheare services. Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Description

For the year ended
31 March 2021

{A) Operating revenue
[ncome from Realtheare services

In patient 3097 6.73
Out patient 5.89 1.25
Income fram sale of phannacy products .75 043
(B) Other operating revenue
Miscellancous income - 4.65
Total revenue 38.61 13.06
Timing of revenue recognition
The following table provides information aboul reccivables, contract assels and centract liabilities from contract with customers:
Drescription For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
At point in time 7.64 1.68
Al point over time 30.97 11.38
Total revenue 38.61 13.06
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables and cantract liabélities frem contract with customers:
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contract assets - Unbilled revenue
Opentng balance of Contract asscts - Unbilled revenue 473 0.01
Less: Amount of revenue recognised during the year (4.73) (00N
Add: Addition during the year 0.02 4.73
Closing balance of Contratet assets - Unbilled revenue 0.02 4.73
Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services irnsferred 10 the custamer, Contract liability is the entity’s obligation te transfer goeds or
services o a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Cantract assets {unbiled receivables} are transferred 10 receivables
when the rights become uncenditienal and contract liabilities are recognised as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.
Reconciliation of revenue
Particulars For the year eaded For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue kYA LY 1247
Adjustment for:
- Discounss 1.42 0.59
Income from healtheare serviees J38.61 13.06

40 Details of ducs to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
Based on the information available with the Company, some of suppliers have been identified, who are registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) to whom the Company owes and the same is outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31 March 2022, The information bas been

determined to the extent such paniics have been identified on the basis of responses received from vendors an confimmation sought by the Campany.

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 dMarch 2021

a) The principal amount payable 1o supplicrs at the year end 0.02 0.24

b) The amount of interest due on the remaining unpaid amount to suppliers as at the year end - 0.02

<) The nmount of interest paid by buyer in terms of section 16 of MSMED, along with the amount - -

d} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have - -

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specilied

under the MSMED

) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - 0.02

f} The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable in the succeeding years, until such - -

date when the inferest dues above are actually paid 1o the small ¢nterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible experditure under section 23 of MSMED.

(This space lias been intentionally left blanky
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(Allamounts are in INR millions, enless othernwise stated)

A1, Ratin anals sis el ids elements

A b dobewang are anabs il datios Jon e vt vaded SN el aed 3 N 0y oo
. As at As at .

Particular Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 Vartance
{a) Cumrent ratio {1} 0133 016 110912 *
{b) Debt equity miio i) =151 -1 06 42 38% *
{c) Bebt service coverage ratio () -6 =225 -1834% *
{d) Retun on equity miio (%) {iv) 46% a0% -2292%
(e} [Inventory wroover ratio tv) 345 0.54 534 45% *
{N Trade receivable tumover ratio {vi) 2304 7.68 211.55% ¢
(g) Trade payable tumover ratio {vii) 023 008 03174% ¢
{h) Net capital wmover ratio tvin) 044 {021 10691% *
{1} Net profit ratio (36) {ix} «529% -1203% <56.04% *
() Retum on capital employed ratio (%6) {x) -18% A 74% -39.89% *
(k) Return on invesiment ratio (%) {x1) NA NA NA

Reasons for varinnge

The Ratios has been improved due (o improved business post Covid-19 in commparision to last vear

Notes .
{1) Currem ratio = Current assels/ current liabilities
{1t) Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debt! sharcholders equity

{113 Debt service covernge rane = Earmings available for debt service/ debit service (refer point (A) below)

(1v) Retumn on Equity = Net Profits after taxes / average Shareholder's Equity
(v) Inventary tumover ratio = Sales / average inventory
{vid Trade receivables tumover ralio = 1n patient department sales / average accounts receivable

¢vi1) Trade payables turmover rano = Net credit purchases (comprise of purchasc of stock-in-trade) / average trade payable

{vui} Net capital ternover ratio = Net Sales! Working Capital
trx) Net Prarit Rano= Net profiv Net sales

%) Rewm on capital employed (ROCE)= Eaming before mierest and taxes/ Capital Emploved (refer point (B below)
(x1) Returm on wvestment 15 nof applicable to the Company as oo invesiment 15 held by the Company

Other explanatory points

{A) Eamning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizattons + [nterest + other adjustments like

toss on sale of PPE erc
Debt service = Interest & Lease pavments + Principal cepayienis

“Net Profit after tax” means reporied amount of “Frofit 7 (foss) for the period™ and it does not include rems of other comprehensive meome

{BY Capital Emploned = Tangible net worth + Total debt + Beferred tax habihiy

(Tlus space has been mrentonathe teft blank)
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{39 et at e b UM mittians pndess ntberwine sctedy

42 Other statutory informatian
a} The Company does not ave amy © 1 property and oo p lings have been initiated or pending agains: the Company for
{Profibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1938} amd the rules nade thercunder.

& any b i property, under the B i T

b} The Company does not have any chatge which is yet to be regisiered with ROC beyond thie stautory period.

<} The Company has not advanced or provided boan to or invested funds in any cniitics including forcign ¢atities {Iatermediarics) or to any other p with the und fing that the
{3) directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoeves by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiarics) or
(i1} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on belalf af the ultimate beneliciaries

d) The Company has not received any fund from any persons oz entilics, in¢luding forcign entilics (Funding Partyy with the undersianding (whether recorded in writing of otherwise) that the
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in otlier persons or entities idemtificd in any manner whatseever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimaie Bencficiariest or

{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate bencBeiaries,

¢} The Company has not undertaken any t son which 15 ao1 recarded in the books of accounts that has been lered or disclosed as i during the year in the tax nssexsments under
the [ncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch of survey or any ather relevant pravisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

N The Company has not traded or i d in crypto v or virlzal currency during the cwrrem and previous finangial year.

g) The Company has no? been declared a "Wilful Defaulter’ by any bank or fi ra) institution (as defined under thie Companies Act, 2013) oz consortium tt L, in i with the guideli

on wilful defzulicr issued by the Rescrve Bank of India.
) The Company has complicd with the number of layers presenbed under clausc (87) af scetion 2 of the Agt read with Companiss { Restriction on tunber of layers) Rules, 2017,
g} The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companics Act. 2013 or section 560 of Companies Agy, 1956 during the financial year.

43 Pursuanm to chany Hied in Schedute-YIT, during the year caded 31 March 2022, the Company Jias reclassificdireprauped cerain previaus year's balanges

As per our report of even date otiachsd

For Walker Clizndiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of direciors of
Chartered Accountanis Ttars Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Firm Registration Mo: 00 [076M/N500013

Tarun Gupta Dr. Skankar Naeang V\/j Nikbil Sharma

Pastner Director Dhreetor
Membershipno. 507592 DIN - 0BD52067 DIN . 09689292
Place: Gurugrmn Place: Gunigram Place: Gurugran
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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L. Corporate information

Paras Heaitheare (Ranchi) Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India with its registered office
situated 1st Floor, Tower-B, Paras Twin Towers, Golf Course Road, Sector-54, Gurugram-122002,. The Company has
been incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Paras Healthcare Private Limited on 29 December 2017. The
Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing healthcare services.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’)
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

(i) Functional and presentation curreney

These financial stalements are prepared in INR millions, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency,
All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest millions and two decimals thereof except share data and per share
data, unless otherwise stated.

(iii} Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Net defined benefit (asset)/ lability Present value of defined benefit obligations
Certain financial assets and financial liabilities Amortized cost

(iv) Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations cffective during the year

a. Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments; Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Ind AS 116 Leases
(amendments related to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform)

The amendment to Ind AS 109, provides a practical expedient for assessment of contractual cash flow test, which is
one of the criteria for being eligible to measure a financial asset at amortized cost, for the changes in the financial
assets that may arise as a result of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform. An additional temporary exception from
applying hedge accounting is also added for Interest Rate Benchmark Reform.

The amendment to Ind AS 107, clarifies the certain additional disclosures to be made on account of Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform;

(i) the nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to interest
rate benchmark reform;

(if) the entity*s progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing
the transition;

(iit) the instruments exposed to benchmark reform disaggregated by significant interest rate benchmark along with

qualitative information about the financial instruments that are yet to transition to alternative benchmark rate;
Y
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(iv) changes to entity’s risk management strategy.

The amendiments introduced a similar practical expedient in Ind AS 116. Accordingly. while accounting for lease
modification i.e. remeasuring the lease liability, in case this is required by interest rate benchmark reform, the lessee
will use a revised discount rate that reflects the changes in the interest rate.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.
b. Ind AS 116 Leases (amendment related to rent concessions arising due to COVID-19 pandemic)

The amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases extended the practical expedient introduced for financial year 2020-21 related to
rent concessions arising due to Covid-19 pandemic, that provides an option to the lessee to choose that rent concessions
for lease payments due on or before 30 June 2022 (from erstwhile notified date of 30 June 2021), arising due to COVID-
19 pandemic (*COVID-19 rent related concessions’) need not be treated as lease modification. The amendment did not
have any material impact on financial statements of the Company.

¢ Amendments consequent to issue of Conceptual Framework for Financial reporting under Ind AS
{Conceptual Framework)

(i)  Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments - Amended the definition of *liabilities’ to *a present obligation of the
entity to transfer an economic resource as a result of past events’.

(i)  Ind AS 103 Business Combinations - The MCA clarified that for the purpose of this Ind AS, acquirers are
required 1o apply the definitions of an asset and a liability given in the Framework for Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with Indian Accounting Standards rather than the Conceptual
Framework.

(iii) Ind AS 114 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - The amendment added a lootnote against the term ‘reliable’ used
in the Ind AS 114, The footnote clarifies that term *faithful representation’ used in the Conceptual Framework
encompasses the main characteristics that the Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with Indian Accounting Standards called *reliability’. However, for the purpose of this Ind AS, the
term ‘reliable’ would be based on the requirements of Ind AS 8.

{(iv} Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The MCA clarified that the definition of
term ‘liability” in this Ind AS is not being revised following the revision of the definition of liability in the
Conceptual Framework.

(v)  Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets - The MCA clarified that the definition of an ‘asset’ in this Ind AS is not being
revised following the revision of the definition of asset in the Conceptual Framework.

{vi) Ind AS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources; Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements; Ind AS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and Ind AS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting - The reference to the Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with Indian Accounting Standards has been substituted with reference to the Conceptual Framework.

The above amendments did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.
(v)  Usc of estimates and judgements
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies

and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses as well as disclosures. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. i
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any fiture periods prospectively.

In particular, information about significant arcas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amount recognised in the financial statements periains
to:

a) Useful lives and recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

The estimated vscful lives and recoverable amounts of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets are based on
estimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, growth rates,
obsolescence, demand, competition, and known technological advances. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation/amortisation is derived based on an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual
value at the end of its life. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period.

b) Impairment assessment;

Property, plant and equipinent, Right-of-Use assets and intangible assets that are subject to depreciation/ amortisation
are tested for impairment periodically including when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating
units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and
assumptions which includes tumover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected
future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic, fair value and market conditions.

¢) Income taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities involves making judgements and cstimations about the availability of
future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred lax asset is recognised for unused
tax losses, deductible temporary differences and MAT credit available, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developiments in case laws and
the potential outcomes of appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary
from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereflore the tax charge
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d} Employee benefit obligations:

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
appropriate assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

¢} Leases:
Critical judgements in determining the lease term:
Ind AS 116 requires lessees (o determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option

to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on
the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether il is reasonably certain oplions

Wor terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company co
hp A

I
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as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lcase
and the importance of the underiying asset to Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying
assel and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances,

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of lcases with similar characteristics,

(vi) Measurement of Mair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. The Company’s Group CFO regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy bascd on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible, If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

(vif) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification.
An asset is classificd as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when il salisfies any of the following criteria:

a) Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
period
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All other liabilitics are classified as non-current.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of preducts/ services and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle to be within 12 months for the purpose of current and non- current classification of assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
3. Significant accounting policies
A. Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurenient

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capilalised borrowing costs, less
accumulaied depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts
and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

if significant paris of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful fives, then they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a property, plant and equipment are detertnined as the
difference betwecen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over
their uscful lives mentioned in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, using the written down value except for
teasehold improvements, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The leaschold improvements are depreciated using straight line method over the primary period of the lease or useful
life of the assets (generally 10 years), whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for
use (disposed of).

B. Capital work-in-progress
The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is recorded as capital work-in-progress before

such date. Cost of construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and ghat are atteibwstah]e 10
construction acgixjiyoaigsaeral and can be allacated to specific property, plant and equipmen in
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work-in-progress.

Expenditure against the assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

C. Intangible asscts

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The cost of such assets includes purchase price, licensee fee, import duties and other taxes and any directly
attributable expenditure to bring the assets to their working condition for intended use.

Amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

[ntangible asscts are amortised @40% p.a on written down value of the assets. The amortisation period, residual value
and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date. If the expected useful life of the asset is
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirentent or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the statement of
profit and loss.

D, Inventories

Inventories of medical drugs, stores and consumables are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs in bringing them to their
present condition and location. The cost of the items constituting the inventory is computed on FIFO basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
E. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, and demand deposits with banks with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

F. Leases

For all existing and new contract on or afier 01 April 2019, the Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a
lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several factors,
including. but not limited to, transfer ol ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to extend/purchase
eic.

Recognition and initial measurement

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability. any initial
direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimaic of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the leade

{if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of apy incentiv
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Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-
of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lcase payments unpaid
at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial
measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any
reassessmeit or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-
measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term [eases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients.
Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an
expense in Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

G. Financial instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

(ii} Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On Initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

o  Amortised cost

o  FVOCI - debt investment;

= FVOCI - equily investment; or
o  [FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

» the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
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On initial recognition of an equily investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI {designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is
twade on an investment- by- investment basis.

All financial assets not classifted as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

a) the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

b) how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

¢) therisks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed;

d) how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

e) the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evalvated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal® is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amourtt outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contraciual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making
this assessment, the Company considers:

2) contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

b) terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

¢) prepayment and exlension feature; and

d) terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g. non- recourse features)
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Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains und losses
Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or [oss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Debt investments at FVOCT

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective intcrest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to statement of profit and
loss.

Equity investmenis at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in statement of profit and loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit
and loss. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

(iii} Derecognition

Financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset.

Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
3

continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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Financial liability

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
The Company also derecognises a [inancial liability when its terms are modified and the cash Mows under the modified
terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair
value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to sct off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
ot & net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

H. Impairment
(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss {ECL) model for the financial assets which are
not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade
receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal)
that is requircd to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measurement of expected credit loss

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Company expecis lo receive).

The Company follows *simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. Under
the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk for individual customers. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates and delays in realisations over the expected life of the
trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. Al every balance sheet date. the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Presemation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets

(ii) tmpairment of non — financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists. then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing. assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating
units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. )
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sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and foss. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

I Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event. the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows {representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilitics

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements,

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

J. Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for rendering of services in the ordinary
course of the Company's activities. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, Revenue is presented net of relurns, trade
allowances, value added taxes, goods and service taxes (GST). Revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue from sale of goods - pharmacy

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured a1 the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and trade discounts. Revenue from sale of pharmacy is recognised when control
of the pharmacy items is transferred to customers, being the products are delivered 1o customers. These products are
gencrally sold with no right of return.

Revenue from sale of services - healtheare

Revenue from sale of services primarily comprises fees charged under contract for inpatient and oulpatient hospital
services and also includes sale of medical and non-medical items. Hospital services include charges for accommodation,
medical professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratery and pharmaceutical goods used in treatments given to
Patients.

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which services are rendered. Where the
contracts include multiple performance obligations, the_transaction price will be allogated to each performance
obligation based on the standalone selling prices.
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Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract asscts are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash,
and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability™) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.
Other income
Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
opiions) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

K. Employce benefits
The Company’s obligation towards various employee bencfits has been recognised as follows:
(i) Short term employce benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., wages and salaries, shori-term cash bonus,
etc., if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(i) Long term employce benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Provident fund and employee's state insurance scheme are defined contribution plans. These contributions are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employce renders the related
services.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan,
The Company has defined benefit plan namely, Gratuity.

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employces have earned in the current period, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets, if any.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

The Company determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying

the discount rate used lo measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net deﬁr)_’cd

benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during th}: period as a result of

contributig benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenscs related to defined
’ z%,us—gw gg% pay P p
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recognised in statement of profit and loss.

The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on government sccurities as at the balance sheet date.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service ('past service cost' or ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in statement
of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
scttlement occurs.

(iii} Other long term employee benefits — compensated absences

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is the
amount of future benefit that employees have carned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation
is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements gains or losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

L. Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in stalement of profit and loss except to the extent that
it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received afier considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income
taxes.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

it. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets arc
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expecied to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would foliow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilitics.

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities ave offsct if there is a legally enforceable right to oflset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend Lo settle current 1ax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simuitancousty.

ivl. Recognition of interest expense

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly
discounts estimaied future cash payment or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to: o




Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
CIN: USSTI0HR2017PTC072032

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset {(when the
asset is not credit-impaired) or o the amortised cost of the liability.

N, Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Company’s Managing Dircctor assesses the financial performance and position of the Company,
and makes strategic decision and has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. The Company is engaged in
the business of providing healthcare services, which has been defined as one business segment. Accordingly, the
Company's activities/business is reviewed regularly by the Company's Managing Director from an overall business
perspective, rather than reviewing its services as individuval standalone components.

0. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equily shareholders
by the weighted average number ol equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per equity share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable 10 equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

P, Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortization, exceptional item and
taxes as a separate line item on the face of the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures EBITDA
on the basis of profit/(loss) from continuing operations.

In the measurement, the Company includes interest income but does not include finance costs, depreciation and
amortization, exceptional item and taxes.

Q. Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the Companies
(Indian Accounting Slandards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 01 April 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103.
The Company does not expect the amendment 1o have any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts
received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended usc. Instead, an entity
will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to
have any impact on its financial staicments.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - costs of fulfilling a contract
The amendments specify that that the *cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the “costs that relate directly to .Ihe
contract’. Cosls that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfillin
would be di gur, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directl
s i >f
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amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact
on its financial statemenits.

Ind AS 109 - Annual improvenents to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact

on its financial statements.




